
 
 
 
 
 

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
SESSIONS HOUSE 

MAIDSTONE 
 

Tuesday, 6 May 2008 
 
To: All Members of the County Council 
 
Please attend the Annual Meeting of the County Council in the Council Chamber, Sessions 
House, County Hall, Maidstone on Thursday, 15 May 2008 at 10.00 am to deal with the 
following business. The meeting is scheduled to end by 4.30 pm. 
 
 

1. Election of Chairman   

2. Election of Vice Chairman   

3. Declarations of Interest   

4. Minutes of the meeting held on 3 April 2008 and if in order, to be 
approved as a correct record.  

(Pages 1 - 4) 

5. Chairman’s Announcements   

6. Questions   

7. Report by Leader of the Council (Oral)   

8. Kent's Second Local Area Agreement  (Pages 5 - 38) 

9. Quarterly Report on Urgent Key Decisions  (Pages 39 - 40) 

10. Kent TV Presentation   

11. Mosquito Devices  (Pages 41 - 44) 

12. Motion for time limited debate moved by Dr M Eddy Seconded by 
Mr D Smyth  

 

 That this County Council notes the lack of detailed information 
supplied to Members regarding progress on Enhanced Two-Tier 
working and requires written updates from the Leader and Chief 
Executive to be incorporated into the agenda of each full Council 
meeting so that progress may be discussed and put to the Council 
for approval.  
 

 

13. Minutes for Information  (Pages 45 - 48) 

 Planning Applications Committee 15 April 2008  
 

 

 



 
Head of Democratic Services and Local Leadership 

01622 694002 
 



 
 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
______________________________ 

MINUTES of a Meeting of the Kent County Council held at County Hall, Maidstone on 
Thursday, 3 April 2008. 

 
PRESENT: 

Mr L B Ridings (Chairman) 
Mr P W A Lake (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Mrs A D Allen, Mrs C Angell, Mr M J Angell, Mr T J Birkett, Mr A H T Bowles, Mr D L Brazier, 
Mr J R Bullock, MBE, Mr C J Capon, Miss S J Carey, Mr P B Carter, Mr N J D Chard, Mr A 
Chell, Mr I S Chittenden, Mr L Christie, Mr B R Cope, Mr G Cowan, Ms C J Cribbon, Mr A D 
Crowther, Mr J Curwood, Mrs V J Dagger, Mr D S Daley, Mr M C Dance, Mr J A Davies, Mrs 
T Dean, Dr M R Eddy, Mr K A Ferrin, MBE; Mr C G Findlay, Mr M J Fittock, Mr G K Gibbens, 
Mr R W Gough, Mrs E Green, Ms A Harrison, Mr M J Harrison, Mr C Hart, Mr W A Hayton, 
Mr C Hibberd, Mr P M Hill, OBE; Mr D A Hirst, Mrs S V Hohler, Mr G A Horne, MBE, Mr I T N 
Jones, Mr A J King, MBE; Mr R E King, Mr S J G Koowaree, Mr C J Law, Mr J F London, Mr 
R L H Long, Mr K G Lynes, Mr T A Maddison, Mr R F Manning, Mr R A Marsh, Mr J I Muckle, 
Mrs M Newell, Mr M Northey, Mr R J E Parker, Mr R J Parry, Mr R A Pascoe, Mr A R Poole, 
Dr T R Robinson, Mrs E D Rowbotham, Mr G Rowe, Mr J E Scholes, Mr J D Simmonds, Mr 
D Smyth, Mr M V Snelling, Mr R Truelove, Mrs E Tweed, Mr M J Vye, Mr C T Wells, Mr B P 
Wood and Mr F Wood-Brignall. 
 
IN ATTENDANCE:- The Chief Executive, Mr P Gilroy, OBE and the Director of Law and 
Governance, Mr G Wild. 

 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 

1. Minutes 
 

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 19 February (subject to deletion 
of Mr K Sansum’s name in minute 4(8)) and 13 March 2008 are correctly recorded 
and that they be signed by the Chairman. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 

  
Mr M Snelling made a declaration of interest in respect of Item 6 on the agenda as a non-
executive Director of Kent Top Temps. 
 

3. Questions 
 
Under Procedure Rule 1.18, 10 questions were asked and replies were given.  4 questions 
remained unanswered at the end of thirty minutes and written answers were given. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



3 April 2008 

 
 

4. Report by Leader of the Council  
 
The Leader of the Council updated the Council on the Localism agenda, Operation Stack, 
progress on LAA Partnerships and working towards an Economic Development Strategy for 
the South East. 
 

5. 2012 Progress Report 

 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 

 

6. Item for Time-Limited Debate 
 
(1) Mrs T Dean, Mr M J Vye seconded that:- 
 

The County Council notes the concern and distrust expressed by Kent businesses 
about the activities of KCC's arms length companies and agrees to:- 

 
(a) ask its external Auditors to confirm that there is no cross subsidy from rate 

payers, and to set out clearly the trading and financial relationship between the 
County Council and these companies, and 

 
(b) assist in the setting up of a county wide forum which would speak for Kent 

businesses, large and small, on issues affecting the viability of commerce and 
industry and therefore employment in Kent. 

 
(2) Mr N Chard moved, Mr M Snelling seconded, as an amendment, that:- 
 

The County Council notes “the importance of maintaining the understanding of Kent 
businesses about the Council’s commercial operations” and agrees to:- 
 
(a) “continue as in previous years” to ask its auditors to confirm that there is no 

cross subsidiary from tax payers and to set out clearly the trading and financial 
relationships between the County Council and these companies,  

 
(b) “use its existing communications channels to communicate effectively the 

purpose and activity of these companies to the business community, and 
 
(c) note the significant effectiveness of the Council’s activities outsourced to the 

private sector which is valued at many millions per year. 
 
(3) The Chairman then put to the vote the amendment set out in (2) above when the 
voting was as follows:- 
 
For -46 
 
Mrs A D Allen, Mr M J Angell, Mr A H T Bowles, Mr D L Brazier, Mr J R Bullock, Mr C J 
Capon, Miss S J Carey, Mr P B Carter, Mr N J D Chard, Mr A Chell, Mr B R Cope, Mr A D 
Crowther, Mr J Curwood, Mr M C Dance, Mr J A Davies, Mr C G Findlay, Mr K A Ferrin, Mr G 
K Gibbens, Mr R W Gough, Mr M J Harrison, Mr W Hayton, Mr C Hibberd, Mr P Hill, Mr D A 
Hirst, Mrs S V Hohler, Mr G A Horne, Mr A J King, Mr R E King, Mr P W A Lake, Mr C J Law, 

Page 2



3 April 2008 

 
 

Mr J F London, Mr R L H Long, Mr K G Lynes, Mr R F Manning, Mr R A Marsh, Mr M 
Northey, Mr R G Parry, Mr R A Pascoe, Mr L B Ridings, Dr T R Robinson, Mr J E Scholes, 
Mr J Simmonds, Mr M V Snelling, Mrs E Tweed, Mr C J Wells and Mr F Wood-Brignall. 
 
Abstain – 21 
 
Mrs C Angell, Mr T Birkett, Mr L Christie, Mr G Cowan, Ms C J Cribbon, Mrs T Dean, Dr M 
Eddy, Mr M J Fittock, Ms E Green, Ms A Harrison, Mr C Hart, Mr I T N Jones, Mr T 
Maddison, Mr J I Muckle, Mrs M Newell, Mr R J E Parker, Mr A R Poole, Mrs E Rowbotham, 
Mr D Smyth, Mr R Truelove, Mr M J Vye. 
 

This was carried and became the substantive motion 

 

The Chairman then put to the vote the substantive motion set out in (2) above when the 
voting was as follows:- 
 

For – 33 
 
Mr M J Angell, Mr A H T Bowles, Mr J R Bullock, Miss S J Carey, Mr P B Carter, Mr N J D 
Chard, Mr A R Chell, Mr B R Cope, Mr A D Crowther, Mr J Curwood, Mrs V J Dagger, Mr M 
C Dance, Mr J A Davies, Mr K A Ferrin, Mr C G Findlay, Mr G K Gibbens, Mr W A Hayton, 
Mr G A Horne, Mr A J King, Mr R E King, Mr P W A Lake, Mr C J Law, Mr J F London, Mr R 
L H Long, Mr K G Lynes, Mr R F Manning, Mr M Northey, Mr R A Pascoe, Mr L B Ridings, 
Mr J E Scholes, Mr M V Snelling, Mr C J Wells and Mr F Wood-Brignall. 
 
Against – 8 
 
Mrs A D Allen, Mr C J Capon, Mr I Chittenden, Mr M J Fittock, Mrs S V Hohler, Mr S J G 
Koowaree, Mr J Simmonds and Mr M J Vye.  
 
Abstain – 20 
 
Mrs C Angell, Mr T Birkett, Mr L Christie, Mr G Cowan, Ms C J Cribbon, Mr D S Daley, Mrs T 
Dean, Dr M Eddy, Ms E Green, Ms A Harrison, Mr C Hart, Mr I T N Jones, Mr T Maddison, 
Mr J I Muckle, Mrs M Newell, Mr R J E Parker, Mr A R Poole, Mrs E Rowbotham, Mr D 
Smyth and Mr R Truelove.   

Carried 

 

(5) RESOLVED that the County Council notes the importance of maintaining the 
understanding of Kent businesses about the Council’s commercial operations and 
agrees to:- 
 
(a) “continue as in previous years” to ask its auditors to confirm that there is no 

cross subsidiary from tax payers and to set out clearly the trading and financial 
relationships between the County Council and these companies,  

 
(b) “use its existing communications channels to communicate effectively the 

purpose and activity of these companies to the business community, and 
 

Page 3



3 April 2008 

 
 

(c) note the significant effectiveness of the Council’s activities outsourced to the 
private sector which is valued at many millions per year. 

 

7. Presentation of Kent Invicta Award 
 
The Chairman presented Mr Dave Lee of Dave Lee’s Happy Holidays with the Kent Invicta 
Award for his charity work for children in Kent.  Mr Lee also received a cheque for £5,000 
which will be donated to his charity. 
 

8. Select Committee: Alcohol Misuse 

 
RESOLVED that:- 
 
(a) the report, its recommendations and the action plan for taking forward the 

Select Committee’s recommendations be endorsed;  

 
(b) the Select Committee be thanked for an excellent report on a complex, 

challenging and emotive issue; 
 
(c) the witnesses and others who provided evidence and made valuable 

contributions to the work of the Select Committee be thanked; 
 
(d) those partners and stakeholders who took part in the informal roundtable 

discussions be thanked for their professional commitment and support; and 
 
(e) the Cabinet’s resolution to hold a countywide event to launch this very 

important report, together with an event involving young people via the Kent 
Youth County Council be agreed. 

 

9. Minutes – Governance and Audit Committee – 4 December 2007 and 5 March 

2008 
 

RESOLVED that, pursuant to Procedure Rule 1.23 (3), these Minutes be noted. 
 

10. Minutes for Information  
 

Pursuant to Procedure Rules 1.10 and 1.19A the Minutes of the Planning Applications 
Committee and Regulation Committee were noted. 

 
 
2008/c&g/countycouncil/040308/minutes 

Page 4



  

By:     Paul Carter:  Leader 
   Peter Gilroy: Chief Executive  
  
To:   County Council - 15 May 
 
Subject:   Kent’s Second Local Area Agreement: Kent   
  Agreement 2 
 
Classification:  Unrestricted  
_____________________________________________________________  
 
Summary:  The attached report informs Members of the latest 

position in the development of Kent’s second Local Area 
Agreement.  It recommends that County Council 
delegates the sign-off of the LAA submission to the Chief 
Executive, in consultation with the Leader of the Council 
and Group Leaders.  

 
FOR DECISION 
_____________________________________________________________  
 
1.  Introduction  
 
A presentation and report on Kent Agreement 2 (KA2) was made at County 
Council on 18 October 2007.  It explained that Local Area Agreements (LAA) 
are agreements between central government and local authorities and their 
partners to improve services and improve the quality of life in a place.  As 
such LAAs are the shorter term three year delivery mechanism for the broader 
and longer term Local Strategic Partnership’s Sustainable Community 
Strategy, which for Kent is the Vision for Kent.  
 
As was the case for LPSA 1 (2001-2004) and Kent Agreement 1 (2005- 
2008), Kent has been in the vanguard of the national LAA process. 
 
Overseen by the Kent Public Service Board, the detailed development of the 
KA2 has been driven forward by the Kent Partnership Team.  The Kent 
Partnership Team has been assisted in this task by the existing Kent 
Partnership Support Group with officers representing a very broad range of 
partners comprising the Kent Partnership.   
 
This report informs Members of the latest position in the development and 
negotiation of KA2 and sets out the final steps before Kent sends its KA2 
submission to Government via the Government Office for the South East 
(GOSE) on 30 May.  The Appendix to this report shows the current state of 
progress as at 01 May.  
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 5



  

 
 
2.  KCC Role  
 
KCC has two principal roles in developing the KA2.    
 
Firstly, as one of the partners within the Kent Partnership it has, alongside all 
other partners, to contribute to the process of identifying the priorities for Kent 
and then offering to be the lead agency or supporting partner for each 
indicator, as appropriate.    
 
Secondly, as the upper tier authority within Kent, KCC has a specific role as 
‘Responsible Local Authority’ and ‘Accountable Body’ for preparing and 
submitting a draft LAA for the Kent area, for ensuring that robust performance 
and financial arrangements are in place and for ensuring any pooled funds 
within the agreement are spent within the terms and conditions set out in the 
Grant Determination. 
 
3.  Development of KA2 
 
Kent Agreement 2 has been developed in line with the requirements set out in 
Operational Guidance, the associated definitions of the National Indicator Set 
and other related publications.  Its development has had two principal stages; 
firstly the identification and agreement of the ‘up to 35’ indicators to support 
local priorities that should form KA2 and, secondly negotiation and agreement 
of baselines and targets for each of the ‘up to 35’ indicators.  It should be 
mentioned that in addition to the ‘up to 35’ there are also 16 statutory 
education and early years indicators required by the Department of Children, 
Schools and Families. 
 
4.  Partner Engagement 
 
The development of KA2 started in January 2007.  The ongoing development 
since October has been a massive and delicate undertaking involving over 
200 officers in about 40 key partners.  The main mechanism to keep all 
stakeholders informed of developments has been the fortnightly ‘Kent 
Agreement 2 bulletins’.   Partners who have volunteered themselves as ‘lead 
partner’ for specific indicators have nominated an ‘accountable/facilitation 
officer’ to lead on the development of KA2.   This group of about 30 key staff 
have met monthly as ‘Kent’s Negotiating Team’.  Additional work has been 
undertaken in all of the working groups of the Kent Partnership and in a 
variety of other informal partnerships such as the Environmental Excellence 
Group, the Kent Planning Officers Group, the Kent Community Safety 
Managers Group and the Clean Kent Delivery Group. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



  

5.  KCC Member Engagement 
 
An outcome of the discussion at the October County Council meeting was the 
formation of an ‘Informal Member Panel’ to make recommendations to 
Cabinet on the development of KA2.    The Panel comprising Nick Chard 
(Chair), Ian Chittenden, Godfrey Horne, John Law and Ray Parker, has met 
three times to consider progress on KA2.  At their most recent meeting on 23 
April they received a report with the latest submission template.  The Panel 
advised on the KCC sign off process and structure of this report.   
 
All KCC Members have been copied into each of the ‘Kent Agreement 2 
bulletins’, which have included all drafts of the submission template, as part of 
the weekly Member information bulletin compiled and distributed by the 
Information Point. 
 
 
6.  Negotiation of the Indicators within Kent Agreement 2 
 
The response to the widespread consultation exercise which took place 
among partners in early summer 2007 formed part of the County Council 
report to Members in October.  This report emphasised the links to the eight 
themes within the Vision for Kent. 
 
Since October Government has published the ‘National Indicator Set for Local 
Authorities’.  This is a set of 198 indicators that Government will use to 
monitor the performance of local authorities and local partnerships.   Its 
publication, albeit in phases and still incomplete with thirteen indicators 
delayed until 2009/10, has allowed partners in Kent to select which of the 
indicators it wishes to see form part of our ‘up to 35’ package.   This selection 
has been based on a careful analysis including how indicators support the 
priorities that emerged for the partner consultation exercise, views of delivery 
partners, existing performance levels and scope for improvement, and the 
views of Government Departments expressed through GOSE.   Also of critical 
importance has been to bring together a set of indicators that are a coherent 
package, that add value to each other such that the total package is greater 
than the sum of individual indicators.    
 
Kent was required by January 15th to send GOSE ‘a list of our draft priorities 
and where possible any indicators that may have been identified’.  Such was 
the progress across Kent that we were able to exceed this minimum 
requirement by submitting a list of our priority areas with our preferred 
indicator[s] for each priority.   In a few cases we indicated an ‘either or’ 
preference while further analysis and discussion took place. 
 
Since the end of January there has been continual discussion with GOSE on 
this list of indicators.  During February some refinements were made in 
response to further data sets becoming available, views being expressed by 
delivery partners or from challenge by GOSE to include a particular indicator 
where they have been able to support this through robust argument. Since 

Page 7



  

March Kent’s set of 35 indicators has remained stable, other than for one late 
switch made by Kent partners.     
 
At all times the development of the package of indicators has been overseen 
by the Kent Public Service Board, supported by the working groups of the 
Kent Partnership. 
 
7.  Negotiation of the Targets within KA2 
 
Since the beginning of April the primary focus has turned towards negotiating 
targets within KA2 for each of the 35 indicators.  This has proven to be much 
more problematic.  This is due to a variety of reasons including the late 
publication by Government of definitions for many of the indicators, the lack of 
available baseline information, the lack of historical performance information 
upon which to base a trajectory and, occasionally, the slow response of 
Government to Kent’s initial target proposal.  In particular a number of 
indicators will be based upon the ‘Place Survey’ or other surveys that have yet 
to be conducted. 
 
The detailed position for each indicator is shown in the appendix.   An 
overview of the position is shown in the table below. 
 
 
 

KENT AGREEMENT 2: POSITION ON TARGET-SETTING  
Summary as at 01/05/08 

 

 Baseline 

Baseline / Targets agreed between Kent partners 
and agreed with GOSE 

2 

Baseline / Targets agreed between Kent partners, 
still under discussion with GOSE, with expectation 
that agreement will be reached by 30 May  

23 

Unlikely to be agreed until after 30/05/08 10 

Total 35 

16 Statutory DCSF Targets to be Agreed (16) 

 
 
It can be seen that, with the deadline of 30 May approaching, the final position 
on many targets still needs to be agreed.  It is anticipated that the pace will 
quicken and many targets will be concluded in the final two to three weeks. 
 
There will, however, remain a number of baselines and targets, such as those 
reliant upon the Place Survey, that will not be possible to agree before 30 
May.  These will be agreed when the results are published and there is the 
opportunity to include them in the KA2 at the time of the first ‘refresh’ of KA2 
between Kent and GOSE in November / December 2008. 
 
 
 

Page 8



  

 
8.  Submitting KA2 to GOSE 
 
Kent needs to submit its final submission template showing baselines, targets 
and partner sign-up to GOSE by 30 May.  Following that date, Ministers will 
give approval to KA2 before the end of June.  The formal responsibility for 
submitting the LAA rests with KCC as the ‘responsible local authority’.   
 
Communities and Local Government wrote to all ‘responsible local authorities’ 
in March directing them to prepare and submit LAAs.  An extract from the 
‘Letter of Direction ’ is as follows: 
 

• I am writing to confirm that the Secretary of State has now made a 
direction, which includes your authority, requiring your authority to 
prepare and submit a draft local area agreement on or before 30 
May. The direction is made under section 106 of the Local 
Government & Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and is 
attached at Annex A.  

 

• In legal terms, this means they will become functions which may be 
(but need not be) the responsibility of the executive.  Therefore your 
full council will need to decide before the draft LAA is submitted, 
whether it will wish to formally adopt the draft LAA or is content to 
delegate the above mentioned functions to the executive. Those 
Regulations were made on 26 February, laid on 3 March and the 
LAA provisions will come into force on 31 March 2008. 

 
This means that before we send Kent’s submission to GOSE on 30 May, KCC 
is required to adopt the LAA or delegate the submission of the LAA to the 
executive.    
 
The previous section of this report looking at the negotiation of the targets 
described how a lot of the final negotiations are likely to be completed in the 
final two to three weeks prior to 30 May.   There will inevitably be a number of 
additions to the submission as it is presently shown in the Appendix.  Further 
baselines will be agreed making it possible to set further targets.  There may 
also be some changes in target levels offered by Kent partners, for example, 
as the contribution of Kent partners becomes clear or we are challenged by 
GOSE to offer more.    Therefore it is not feasible to bring to County Council 
today a final version of KA2 to formally adopt.  
 
Instead it is recommended that County Council delegates the sign off of the 
LAA submission to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader of the 
Council and Group Leaders. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



  

 
 
9.  Partner Sign-Up to Kent Agreement 2 
 
The submission template requires partners in Kent to state whether they ‘sign-
up’ to each of the targets in KA2.   Clearly the more partners that ‘sign-up’ to 
KA2 the stronger it will be and the chances of securing delivery will be 
maximised.   It will also reflect well on the individual partners who ‘sign-up’, 
particularly those that will be subject to the forthcoming Comprehensive Area 
Assessment as it will be good evidence of partnership engagement. 
 

There are three categories of partners: Lead Partner, Statutory Partner and 

Non Statutory Partner.     

 
Each indicator requires at least one partner to act as ‘lead’.    
 
The distinction between Statutory and Non Statutory Partners is whether they 
are named in the Local Government and Involvement in Public Health Act 
2007.   The significance of this distinction is that statutory partners have a 
‘duty to cooperate’ in the development of a LAA and when a statutory partner 
‘signs up’ to a target they have a ‘duty to have regard’ to it in their own 
business planning and performance managing processes. 
 
The named partners are: Arts Council,  Broads Authority, Chief Officer of 
Police, District Authorities, English Heritage,  Environment Agency,  Fire and 
rescue Authorities, Health and Safety Executive, Highways Agency, Jobcentre 
Plus, Joint Waste Authorities, Joint Waste Disposal Authorities, Learning and 
Skills Council in England, Local Probation Boards, Metropolitan Passenger 
Transport Authorities, Museums Libraries and Archives Council, National Park 
Authorities, Natural England, NHS Foundation Trusts, NHS Health Trusts, 
Police authorities, Primary Care Trusts, Probation Trusts and other providers 
of probation services, Regional Development Agencies, Sport England, 
Transport for London, Youth Offending Teams,  
 
Other, non statutory partners such as informal partnerships, professional 
groupings, voluntary and community groups, business sector groups, 
individual sponsors, faith organisations are encouraged to sign up to the 
whole agreement or to specific targets. The ‘duty to cooperate’ and ‘duty to 
have regard’ does not apply to non statutory partners. 
 
At the time of writing, many statutory partners, including both West Kent 
Primary Care Trust and East Kent and Coastal Primary Care Trust and most 
District Councils have taken the pragmatic view that they will sign-up to all 35 
indicators and reflect those that they will make a particular delivery 
contribution to through the delivery plan process. The view of these partners 
is that they wish to see progress in every indicator, whether or not they have a 
direct delivery contribution.   
 
 
 

Page 10



  

 
 
10.  Planning for Delivery of KA2 
 
All of the work on identifying priorities, selecting indicators, negotiating targets 
and partners signing up to targets must be underpinned be effective plans for 
delivery to ensure that the improvement in services that is at the heart of KA2 
is achieved .    
 
Kent partners, who have worked together to deliver Kent Agreement 1 (KA1), 
have a good base of experience upon which to build.  Partners are reflecting 
upon the lessons learnt in KA1 as we develop our approach to delivery 
planning for KA2.   Two sets of delivery plans will be prepared, firstly a 
countywide delivery plan for each of the 35 indicators and secondly a Local 
Strategic Partnership based Local Action Plan.    
 

Countywide Delivery Plans 
Lead partners for outcomes in Kent Agreement 1 (April 05 – March 08) 
prepared robust countywide delivery plans for each outcome.   A 
similar approach is required for KA2. These will be led by the 
facilitating officer nominated by the lead partner.   They will be 
developed in conjunction with other delivery partners. 

 
LSP based Local Action Plan 
District based LSPs comprise a number of individual statutory partners, 
many who have ‘signed-up’ to some or all targets.  The preparation of 
local action plans across all LSPs in Kent is new and is very much 
welcomed.  Developed by LSPs, these local action plans will allow 
each LSP to decide which KA2 targets they will support the delivery.  
Each LSP will make an assessment, within its local context, on what is 
most important and which targets offer the greatest scope for 
improvement.   

 
The development of countywide indicator level delivery plans and LSP based 
local action plans must be taken forward iteratively as part of the same 
process.   They both need to be developed with full awareness of each other 
with frequent ‘touching of base’.  This will ensure that each countywide 
delivery plan is developed in the knowledge that there is sufficient 
engagement of local partners and it will enable local action plans to be 
prepared knowing how those plans can support the individual countywide 
indicator delivery plans. 
 
A pre-requisite to developing Local Action Plans across LSPs is the use of a 
consistent data set. Countywide level data, wherever possible, is being 
disaggregated to district level and below to support this process.  This will 
allow LSPs to benchmark their comparative performance allowing them to 
form a judgement over where they are able to make the greatest contribution 
to countywide indicators.  This will be undertaken through the Kent 
Partnership office. 
 

Page 11



  

 
 
11.  Performance Managing Kent Agreement 2 
 
The performance management of KA2 will have a number of inter-locking 
components.   The principal performance management arrangements will 
focus upon managing the delivery of the countywide targets.  The 
components are described below. 
 

The Kent Partnership: 
It is proposed that the same arrangements used throughout Kent 
Agreement 1 (KA 1) should be maintained for the period of KA 2. The 
process will be based upon a six-monthly reporting process involving a 
data collection and text update for each indicator, completed by the 
Accountable Officer for each outcome (or their nominated 
representative). Experience shows that initial drafts of the report will be 
ready approximately six weeks after the end of each reporting period. 
These reports will continue to be co-ordinated by the Kent Partnership 
Office, under the leadership of the Kent Agreement Manager.  

 
The reports will be received by the Kent Public Service Board for 
consideration and comment and the relevant sections considered and 
the implications for performance acted upon by the relevant Kent 
Partnership Working Group[s]. Activity undertaken to boost, or 
maintain, performance will be led by a Steering Group for each 
outcome, under the direction of the Accountable Officer. 

 
A conscious decision had been taken at the start of the Kent 
Agreement 1 period that only one main, centrally prepared report would 
be produced and that no updates would be expected between the six 
monthly monitoring points. This was to ensure that there would be no 
confusion about the status of performance at any time and, just as 
importantly, Accountable Officers and those working to bring the 
targets to successful conclusions would be continually distracted from 
delivery operations by being asked to produce “interim updates”. It is 
proposed that this arrangement should continue. 

 
The existence of only one main reporting system also has the benefit 
that the same report can be used by all partner organisations for their 
internal reporting processes.  

 
Kent County Council 
Within Kent County Council, the monitoring position throughout KA 1 
was made available to the Leader and Cabinet Members on a regular 
basis. It was also the practice that Portfolio Holders and Lead members 
kept in touch with performance in the various directorates through 
Managing Directors and key officers tasked with leading on individual 
indicators. Again, it is proposed that this should continue, matching, as 
it does, with the normal procedure of monitoring progress against 
business plans. 

Page 12



  

 
 

Government Office for the South East (GOSE) 
The government office will track progress towards delivery of the 
targets in the LAA.   
 
Each November / December there will be an annual review of KA2 by 
the government office which should be proportionate and tailored to the 
evidence and track record of delivery.  If there appears to be significant 
slippage it will initiate discussion to understand the problems and what 
is being done to get back on track.   

 
The first of these annual reviews meetings will take place less than six 
months after the agreement has been signed.   It seems likely that the 
December 2008 review will, mainly, be an opportunity to include 
baselines and targets that were unavailable by 30 May, together with 
discussion of early progress on those indicators and targets that have 
been set by June.  

 
Lead Agencies and Accountable Officers 
For each countywide indicator there is a designated countywide lead 
partner and a nominated accountable officer responsible for the 
successful delivery of the target.  This will include the preparation of an 
effective delivery plan, engaging other delivery partners and 
preparation of monitoring reports.   They will be responsible, in 
conjunction with the delivery partners who have signed up to support 
delivery, for the successful delivery of the target.  If performance is not 
on track they should between them take the necessary first line 
corrective actions.  If necessary they should involve the relevant 
Working Group of the Kent Partnership. 

 
Kent Partnership Support Group 
Collectively the Accountable Officers for all of the indicators in KA2 will 
form the Kent Partnership Support Group.  This will meet 
approximately quarterly and give an opportunity to monitor the overall 
progress of KA2, identify similar problems occurring in different areas, 
learn from different approaches being taken and exchange best 
practice.    

 
LSP Performance Management of Local Action Plans 
It is envisaged that LSPs will monitor performance of partners at district 
level, delivering against the local targets, based on regular reports 
using the data described above. This will allow them to oversee a 
performance management process relating to their own local position. 
The LSPs would, in this way, reflect the role of the Kent Partnership at 
countywide level. KCC representatives on LSPs will wish to engage 
with this process as appropriate.  It may be that there is an opportunity 
here for individual elected members to be involved in the process in 
their own locality. 

 

Page 13



  

 
 
12.  Performance Reward Grant for Kent Agreement 2 
 
An announcement has been made that the national pot for performance 
reward grant for this new round of LAAs has been set at £340m.  This is a 
reduction from the national pot of £1.2bn available for the reward grant 
available for the first round of LAAs. 
 
There is still no detailed model on how reward will be calculated.   This is 
likely to be subject to a consultation paper over the summer period.   However 
it does seem likely that, rather than an allocation of reward per indicator, an 
assessment will be made on the overall level of achievement of the whole 
agreement.    
 
Using the usual “rule of thumb” that Kent tends to receive approximately 2% 
of any national figure, this would suggest a Kent PRG of between £6m - £8m. 
In comparison, the total possible reward for Kent Agreement 1 is £36m. 
  
 
13.  Conclusion 
 
Since the last report to County Council there has been an enormous amount 
of energy and activity across a huge range of partners deployed into the 
development of the Kent Agreement 2.   It is reassuring that this has been, 
overwhelmingly, a positive and collaborative experience that has helped 
strengthen old partnerships and develop new ones.   
 
It would be appropriate to give a strong message to all the agencies and 
officers involved in its development by supporting the package of indicators in 
the Kent Agreement 2, motivating them to turn their focus and energies into 
delivering improved services for the residents of Kent. 
 
14.  Recommendations  
 

1. To NOTE progress on the continued development of Kent  
Agreement 2; 

2. To AGREE that delegation for sign off of the Kent Agreement 2 
submission is given to the Chief Executive , in consultation with the 
Leader of the Council and Group Leaders; 

3. [OPTIONAL To thank all the staff of the County Council and other 
partner agencies for their work in the development of Kent Agreement 
2] 

 
 
Peter Gilroy 
Chief Executive 
01622 694000 
peter.gilroy@kent.gov.uk  
 

Page 14



  

 
 
Background Documents:  
1. Report to County Council 18 October 2007 
2. Development of the new LAA framework (operational guidance):  CLG 
November 2007 
3. Creating Strong, Safe and Prosperous Communities Statutory Guidance: 
Draft for Consultation: CLG November 2007 
4. National Indicators for Local Authorities and Local Authority Partnerships:  
Handbook of Definitions 
 
 
 

Page 15



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

ECONOMIC SUCCESS 

NI  163 Proportion of 
population aged 19-64 for 
males and 19-59 for 
females qualified to at least 
Level 2 or higher 

 
 
67.5% 
(508,000) 

  Available by 30 
April. 
 
Suggested 
improvement of 2%, 
or numerical 
equivalent (or 
“closing the gap”)  
 
Under discussion 
with GOSE. – not 
yet agreed 

Lead: 
Learning & Skills Council* 
Statutory Partners: 
Kent County Council (Adult Education & KASS), 
Kent Probation, SEEDA, District Councils (to be 
named), East Kent and Coastal Primary Care 
Trust, West Kent Primary Care Trust 
Non Statutory Partners: 
Kent Economic Board (Employment Skills 
Board), Business Link Kent  
 
LSC developed action plan.  GOSE using this as 
regional good practice.  Action plan will be used 
to set targets.  Awaiting publication of DIUS 
guidance.   Not expecting to be able to agree 
target before end April – LSC has received 
target negotiating brief. 
 

NI 171 New business 
registration rate 

Available 
November 
2008 

  Available November 
2008.  
 
Aim to reduce 
differential on GOSE 
level by 2%age 

Lead: 
Business Link Kent* 
Kent County Council * 
Statutory Partners: 
KCC (E&R),  District Councils (to be named), 
East Kent and Coastal Primary Care Trust, West 

P
a
g
e
 1

6



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

points on at least 
one occasion 
between 2008 and 
2011. 
 
Unable to be agreed 
until after the end of 
May. 

Kent Primary Care Trust 
Non Statutory Partners: 
Locate in Kent; Kent Economic Board  
 
GOSE support approach to target setting.  
GOSE discussing with BERR on how to deal 
with indicator whilst waiting for data.  
 

NI 152 Working age people 
on out of work benefits 

Further 
guidance from 
DWP available 
May 

  DWP looking for 
improvement in 
range of 1% to 3%. 
 
Kent initially 
proposed 2%. 
 
Under discussion 
with GOSE. – not 
yet agreed 

Lead: 
Jobcentre Plus* 
Statutory Partners: 
Kent County Council, District Councils (to be 
named), East Kent and Coastal Primary Care 
Trust, West Kent Primary Care Trust 
Non Statutory Partners:  
DWP 
 
Approach on target setting agreed with KP, JCP 
and GOSE.  JCP to confirm proposed target wk 
beg 21/4 
 

NI 188 Planning to Adapt to 
Climate Change 

Level 1 
 
Finalising with 
GOSE 

  Level 3 
 
Finalising with 
GOSE 

Lead: 
Kent County Council* 
Statutory Partners: 
District Councils (to be named), Environment 

P
a
g
e
 1

7



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

Under discussion 
with GOSE. – not 
yet agreed 

Agency, Kent Fire & Rescue Service, East Kent 
and Coastal Primary Care Trust, West Kent 
Primary Care Trust 
Non Statutory Partners: 
Kent Economic Board, Business Link Kent  
 

LEARNING FOR EVERYONE 

NI 161 Learners achieving 
a Level 1 qualification in 
literacy 
 

Data and LSC 
negotiating 
brief now 
available from 
national LSC. 

  Developed once 
baseline known. 
 
Under discussion 
with GOSE. – not 
yet agreed 

Lead: 
Kent County Council* 
Statutory Partners: 
Learning & Skills Council, Kent Probation, 
District Councils (to be named), East Kent and 
Coastal Primary Care Trust, West Kent Primary 
Care Trust 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 

NI 162 Learners achieving 
an Entry Level 3 
qualification in numeracy 

Data and LSC 
negotiating 
brief now 
available from 
national LSC. 

  Developed once 
baseline known. 
 
Under discussion 
with GOSE. – not 
yet agreed 

Lead: 
Kent County Council* 
Statutory Partners: 
Learning & Skills Council, Kent Probation, 
District Councils (to be named), East Kent and 
Coastal Primary Care Trust, West Kent Primary 
Care Trust 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

8



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

NI 117 16-18 year olds who 
are not in education, 
employment or training 
(NEET) 

5.27%   Target had been 
agreed at 4.8%, but 
DCSF requesting it 
set below 4.6%.  
Further discussions 
under way with 
GOSE/DCSF.  
 
Under discussion 
with GOSE. – not 
yet agreed 

Lead: 
Kent County Council* 
Statutory Partners: 
Statutory agencies comprising Kent Children’s 
Trust, LSC, East Kent and Coastal Primary Care 
Trust, West Kent Primary Care Trust 
Non Statutory Partners: 
Connexions 
 

IMPROVED HEALTH, CARE & WELLBEING 

NI 120 All-age all cause 
mortality rate 

Male          656 
Female      491 
 
All persons 
565  
 

613 
467 
 
535 
 

596 
459 
 
523 
 

579 
451 
 
512 
 
Close to agreement 
with GOSE 

Lead: 
East Kent and Coastal Primary Care Trust 
And West Kent Primary Care Trust* 
Statutory Partners: 
Kent County Council, District Councils (to be 
named), Kent Probation  
Non Statutory Partners: 
Voluntary & Community Sector 
 
GOSE awaits submission of recalculated data 
from Kent. 
 

NI 55 Obesity in primary 9.4% 9.6% 9.7% 9.7% Lead: 

P
a
g
e
 1

9



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

school age children in 
Reception 

  
Agreed with GOSE 

Kent County Council* 
Statutory Partners: 
Statutory agencies comprising Kent Children’s 
Trust, East Kent and Coastal Primary Care 
Trust, West Kent Primary Care Trust, District 
Councils (to be named), 
Non Statutory Partners: 
Kent  schools, Early Years Providers 
 

NI 39 Rate of Hospital 
Admissions per 100,000 for 
Alcohol Related Harm 

Baseline and 
target under 
discussion with 
GOSE, 
including 
issues over 
unsuitability for 
baseline to be 
set on one 
year figures 
only. 3 year 
rolling figures 
more 
appropriate. 

  Unable to set until 
baseline 
established. 
 
Data requested from 
Kent now with 
GOSE. 
 
Under discussion 
with GOSE. – not 
yet agreed 
 
 

Lead: 
East Kent and Coastal Primary Care Trust, West 
Kent Primary Care Trust* 
Statutory Partners: 
Kent Police, Hospital Trusts (to be named), 
Statutory agencies comprising KDAAT, District 
Councils (to be named), Kent County Council, 
Kent Probation 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 
 

NI 40 Number of drug 
users recorded as being in 

Not available 
until Summer 

+5% +6% +7% 
(+19.1%  cumulative 

Lead: 
Statutory agencies comprising KDAAT, Kent 

P
a
g
e
 2

0



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

effective treatment 08 
 
Under 
discussion with 
NTA / GOSE 

total) 
 
Under discussion 
with GOSE. – not 
yet agreed 
 
 

County Council * 
Statutory Partners: 
Kent Probation, East Kent and Coastal Primary 
Care Trust, West Kent Primary Care Trust, 
District Councils (to be named), 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 
Kent awaits further guidance from National 
Treatment Agency. 
 

NI 125 Achieving 
independence for older 
people through 
rehabilitation/intermediate 
care 

Dependent on 
data collection, 
not due until 
late June.  
 
Under 
discussion with 
GOSE 

  Should be set late 
June  
 
Unable to be agreed 
until after the end of 
May. 

Lead: 
Kent County Council* 
Statutory Partners: 
East Kent and Coastal Primary Care Trust, West 
Kent Primary Care Trust, District Councils (to be 
named), 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 
 

NI 51 Effectiveness of child 
and adolescent mental 
health (CAMHs) services 

 12 
 
Discussing 
with GOSE. 

13 13 14 
Proposed targets 
 
Under discussion 
with GOSE. – not 
yet agreed 

Lead: 
Kent County Council* 
Statutory Partners: 
Statutory agencies comprising Kent Children’s 
Trust, East Kent and Coastal Primary Care 
Trust, West Kent Primary Care Trust, Mental 

P
a
g
e
 2

1



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

 
 
 

Health Trusts, District Councils (to be named), 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL EXCELLENCE 

NI 189 Flood and coastal 
erosion risk management 

0% 
 
 

  80% of LA actions 
being undertaken 
satisfactorily. 
 
 
Close to agreement 
with GOSE 
 

Lead: 
Environment Agency* 
Statutory Partners: 
Kent County Council, Kent Fire & Rescue 
Service, District  Councils (to be named), East 
Kent and Coastal Primary Care Trust, West Kent 
Primary Care Trust 
Non Statutory Partners: 
Environmental Excellence Group,  
 

NI 186 Per capita CO2 
emissions in the LA area 

7.5 tons 
 
Close to 
agreement 

  11% reduction (+/- 
2%) 
 
Close to agreement 
with GOSE 

Lead: 
Kent County Council* 
Statutory Partners: 
District Councils (to be named), East Kent and 
Coastal Primary Care Trust, West Kent Primary 
Care Trust, Kent Fire and Rescue Service 
Non Statutory Partners: 
Environmental Excellence Group 
 

NI 191 Residual household 
waste per household 

860 kg 
 

762 kg 733kg 704 kg 
 

Lead: 
Statutory Agencies comprising Kent Waste 

P
a
g
e
 2

2



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

 Agreed with GOSE Partnership (Kent County Council and District 
Councils) (to be named), * 
Statutory Partners: 
East Kent and Coastal Primary Care Trust, West 
Kent Primary Care Trust 
Non Statutory Partners: 
Environmental Excellence Group  
 

NI 197 Improved Local 
Biodiversity – proportion of 
Local Sites where positive 
conservation management 
has been or is being 
implemented 

231 
 

  265 
(+15%)  
 
Discussing whether 
target should be 
15% over 3 years or 
5% per annum 
cumulative 
(+15.7%).  
 
Close to agreement 
with GOSE  

Lead: 
Statutory Agencies comprising Kent Biodiversity 
Action Partnership (Kent County Council* 
District Councils) (to be named) 
Statutory Partners: 
East Kent and Coastal Primary Care Trust, West 
Kent Primary Care Trust 
Non Statutory Partners: 
Environmental Excellence Group,  
 
 

STRONGER & SAFER COMMUNITIES 

NI 195 Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness 
(levels of litter, detritus, 
graffiti and fly posting) 

Litter / 
Detritus: 
11.49% 
Graffiti: 5.11% 

  Litter / Detritus: 
9.0% 
Graffiti: 3% 
Fly Posting: 0% 

Lead: 
Statutory Agencies comprising Clean Kent 
Delivery Group* (Kent County Council* District 
Councils) (to be named) 

P
a
g
e
 2

3



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

Fly Posting: 
0.44%  
 
 

Further discussions 
with GOSE/ 
ENCAMS 01 May. 
 
Under discussion 
with GOSE. – not 
yet agreed 

Statutory Partners: 
Kent County Council, District Councils (to be 
named), Kent Probation, Kent Fire & Rescue 
Service, East Kent and Coastal Primary Care 
Trust, West Kent Primary Care Trust 
Non Statutory Partners: 
CDRPs, Kent Waste Partnership 
 

NI 15 Serious Violent Crime 
Rate 

08/09 is 
baseline 
setting year 
(due to 
changing 
accounting 
rules) 
 

Proxy 
using 
serious 
violence 
as target 
for Year 1 
to reduce 
from 0.5 to 
0.4 per 
1000. 
Reduction 
of 16%. 
Suggested 
by Kent. 
Data 
under 
discussion 

 Target to be 
reviewed at end of 
year 1 when 
baseline known. 
 
Unable to be agreed 
until after the end of 
May. 

Lead: 
Kent Police* 
Statutory Partners: 
District Councils (to be named), East Kent and 
Coastal Primary Care Trust, West Kent Primary 
Care Trust, Kent County Council 
Non Statutory Partners: 
CDRPs 
 
GOSE has provided Kent with further technical 
guidance. 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

4



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

reflecting 
GOSE 
view that 
baseline 
should be 
0.3 (rolling 
3 months 
730 
numerical) 

NI 21 Dealing with local 
concerns about anti-social 
behaviour and crime by the 
local council and police 

Suggested 
survey 
question in 
current BCS 
will be 
imported in full 
into the KCVS. 
 
Approval 
awaited 

For Year 1 
proxy 
used to 
reduce 
%age 
people 
with 
perceived 
high level 
of ASB 
using 
KCVS.  
Reduce fm 
15.3% to 
15% 

 Target to be 
reviewed at end of 
year 1 when 
baseline known. 
 
GOSE awaiting HO 
Target Negotiation 
Brief before final 
agreement 
 
Unable to be agreed 
until after the end of 
May. 

Lead: 
Crime & Disorder Reduction Partnerships* 
Statutory Partners: 
Kent Probation, Kent County Council 
(Community Safety & Youth Offending Service), 
Kent Police, District Councils (to be named), 
East Kent and Coastal Primary Care Trust, West 
Kent Primary Care Trust 
Non Statutory Partners: 
Kent Housing Group, Kent Community Safety 
Managers, community and voluntary sector 
groups 

NI 111 First time entrants to Technical   GOSE awaiting HO Lead: 

P
a
g
e
 2

5



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

the Youth Justice System 
aged 10-17 

definition still 
under 
consultation.  

Target Negotiation 
Brief 
To be set at 
December “refresh”. 
 
Unable to be agreed 
until after the end of 
May. 

Kent County Council* 
Statutory Partners: 
Statutory agencies comprising the Kent 
Children’s Trust, District Councils (to be named), 
East Kent and Coastal Primary Care Trust, West 
Kent Primary Care Trust 
Non Statutory Partners: 
CDRPs,  
 

NI 32 Repeat incidents of 
domestic abuse 

Dependent 
upon roll out of 
‘Multi Agency 
Risk 
Assessment 
Committees’ 
(MARACS) 

In line with 
GOSE 
guidance 
no target 
set for 
Year 1. 
Proxy 
Measure 
to reduce 
Violent 
Domestic 
Abuse 
from 
24.2% to 
22.0% 
using Apr 

 Years 2 and 3 will be 
set upon outcome of 
MARACS. 
 
GOSE waiting for 
HO Negotiating 
Brief. 
 
Unable to be agreed 
until after the end of 
May. 

Lead: 
Kent Police* 
Statutory Partners: 
East Kent and Coastal Primary Care Trust, West 
Kent Primary Care Trust, Kent Probation, Kent 
County Council, District Councils (to be named), 
Non Statutory Partners: 
CDRPs, community and voluntary sector groups 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

6



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

to Dec 
2007 as 
ba 

NI 3 Civic participation in 
the local area 

Cannot be set 
until Place 
Based Survey 
conducted 
(Sept 08) 

  2% increase on 
existing position 
proposed by Kent.  
 
Action Plans 
developed and 
under local 
discussion 
 
Unable to be agreed 
until after the end of 
May. 

Lead: 
District Councils (to be named) (District 
Community  Development Managers*) 
Statutory Partners: 
Kent County Council (Youth Service), East Kent 
and Coastal Primary Care Trust, West Kent 
Primary Care Trust 
Non Statutory Partners: 
Voluntary and Community Sector (Kent CAN) 
 

NI 6 Participation in regular 
volunteering 

Cannot be set 
until Place 
Based Survey 
conducted 
(Sept 08) 

  2% increase on 
existing position 
proposed by Kent. 
Action Plans 
developed and 
under local 
discussion 
 
Unable to be agreed 
until after the end of 

Lead: 
District Councils (to be named) (District 
Community Development Managers*) 
Statutory Partners: 
Kent Probation, Kent County Council (Youth 
Service & Kent Volunteers),  
Non Statutory Partners: 
Voluntary and Community Sector (Kent CAN) 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

7



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

May. 

ENJOYING LIFE 

NI 11 Engagement in the 
Arts 

Established 
through a new 
question in the 
Active People 
Survey 
commencing 
April 08.  
 
Baseline 
expected by Oct 
08 

  Unable to set until 
baseline established 
 
Unable to be agreed 
until after the end of 
May. 

Lead: 
Kent County Council* 
Statutory Partners: 
District Councils (to be named), East Kent and 
Coastal Primary Care Trust, West Kent Primary 
Care Trust 
Non Statutory Partners: 
Kent Association of Leisure and Cultural Officers 
(KALCO) 

NI 8 Adult participation in 
sport and active 
recreation 

20.3% (on 
05/06) 
(potential to use 
07/08 as 
baseline  under 
discussion with 
GOSE/DCMS) 

  Under discussion 
with GOSE 
 
Under discussion 
with GOSE. – not 
yet agreed 

Lead: 
Kent County Council* 
Statutory Partners: 
District Councils (to be named), East Kent and 
Coastal Primary Care Trust, West Kent Primary 
Care Trust 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 

NI 110 Young people’s 
participation in positive 
activities 

Available 
Autumn 08 
through “Tell Us” 
survey 

  Unable to set until 
baseline established 
 
To be set at 

Lead: 
Kent County Council* District Councils - District 
Community Development Managers, (to be 
named) 

P
a
g
e
 2

8



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

December “refresh”. 
 
Unable to be agreed 
until after the end of 
May. 

Statutory Partners: 
Statutory agencies comprising the Kent 
Children’s Trust, East Kent and Coastal Primary 
Care Trust, West Kent Primary Care Trust 
Non Statutory Partners: 
Voluntary & Community Sector (Kent CAN) 
 
 

KEEPING KENT MOVING 

NI 198 Children travelling 
to school – mode of travel 
usually used 

Primary: 44%car 
Secondary: 32% 
car  
Latest guidance 
revised to “Age 
Range 5-16” 
with no 
separation of 
primary and 
secondary. 
Baseline 
wording to be 
revised 
accordingly. 
 
To be agreed 

  39% (-5%) 
27% (-5%) 
 
Proposed target to 
remain at -5% 
 
 
Under discussion 
with GOSE. – not 
yet agreed  

Lead: 
Kent County Council (Kent Highways Service) * 
Statutory Partners: 
Statutory agencies comprising the Kent 
Children’s Trust, District Councils (to be named), 
East Kent and Coastal Primary Care Trust, West 
Kent Primary Care Trust 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

9



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

 
Awaiting GOSE 
comments. 

NI 175 Access to services 
and facilities by public 
transport, walking and 
cycling 

Originally 
proposed as 
“access to 
Hospitals and 
Doctor’s 
Surgeries”. 
Revised 
proposal to 
reflect outputs 
within Kent 
partners control 
– implementing 
accessibility 
improvements 
on routes to, 
and at, bus 
stops servicing 8 
main Kent 
hospitals. (cont 
in Targets 
column) 
 

  (From baseline 
column):Audit 
results will be used 
to propose b’line and 
target 
figures.Internal 
meeting set for 
30/04, to be followed 
by discussion with 
GOSE. 
 
 
 
Under discussion 
with GOSE. – not 
yet agreed 
 
 

Lead: 
Kent County Council* 
Statutory Partners: 
East Kent and Coastal Primary Care Trust, West 
Kent Primary Care Trust, District Councils (to be 
confirmed) (LDFs),  
Non Statutory Partners: 
Kent Planning Officers Group, Transport 
Operators 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

0



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

 

NI 47 People killed or 
seriously injured in road 
traffic accidents 

1183 
 
To be agreed 

  Proposed at 592  
(50% reduction)  
 
Under discussion 
with GOSE. – not 
yet agreed 
 

Lead: 
Kent County Council* 
Statutory Partners: 
Kent Police, Kent Fire & Rescue Service, East 
Kent and Coastal Primary Care Trust, West Kent 
Primary Care Trust, District Councils (to be 
named), Kent Probation 
Non Statutory Partners: 
Kent  & Medway Safety Camera Partnership 
 

HIGH QUALITY HOMES 

PROPOSE TO OMIT 
NI 170 Previously 
developed land that has 
been vacant or derelict for 
more than 5 years 
PROPOSE TO 
REPLACE WITH 
 NI 159  
Supply of ready to 
develop housing sites” 
proposed by Kent 
Planning Officer Group. 
Agreed at PSB (21 April). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Supply is 
already 42% 
over the current 
level of 
requirement by 
developers 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Maintain 
at 42% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Maintain 
at 42% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Maintain at 42% 
 
 
Under discussion 
with GOSE. – not 

Lead: 
District Councils (to be named), 
Statutory Partners: 
East Kent and Coastal Primary Care Trust, West 
Kent Primary Care Trust, Kent County Council 
Non Statutory Partners:  
(KPOG and KHG) 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

1



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

GOSE agreeable. yet agreed 
 

NI 187 Tackling fuel 
poverty - % of people 
receiving income based 
benefits living in homes 
with a low energy 
efficiency rating 

Awaiting 
technical 
guidance 
(Autumn 08) 
 
Under 
discussion with 
GOSE 

  Unable to set until 
baseline established 
 
Under discussion 
with GOSE 
 
Unable to be agreed 
until after the end of 
May. 
 
 

Lead: 
Statutory Agencies comprising Kent Energy 
Centre/Kent Energy Efficiency Partnership* 
Statutory Partners: 
District Councils (to be named), East Kent and 
Coastal Primary Care Trust, West Kent Primary 
Care Trust,  
Non Statutory Partners: 
Kent Housing Group 
 
 

NI 154 Net additional 
homes provided 

5360  
Proposal based 
on legally 
agreed  figures 
in Structure Plan 
2007-2016 
rather than 
South East Plan 
(SEP). 
 
 

5744 
(Draft SEP 
and EIP 
Panel 
Report 
residual 
figures for 
2008-11)  

5744 5744 
 
Formal response 
from GOSE awaited. 
 
Under discussion 
with GOSE. – not 
yet agreed 
 

Lead: 
District Councils* (to be named) -  
Statutory Partners: 
East Kent and Coastal Primary Care Trust, West 
Kent Primary Care Trust, Kent County Council 
Non Statutory Partners: 
Kent Planning Officers Group, Kent Housing 
Group, 

NI 155 Number of 0 +1356 +1503 = +1425 = 4284 Lead: 

P
a
g
e
 3

2



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

affordable homes 
delivered (gross) 

 
 

2859  
Under discussion 
with GOSE. – not 
yet agreed 
 

District Councils* (to be named) -  
Statutory Partners: 
Kent County Council 
Non Statutory Partners  
Kent Planning Officers Group/Kent Housing 
Group* 
 

NI 141 Percentage of 
vulnerable people 
achieving independent 
living 

65.7 
 
Formal 
response from 
GOSE awaited. 

66.7 68.2 71 
 
Formal response 
from GOSE awaited. 
 
Under discussion 
with GOSE. – not 
yet agreed 
 

Lead: 
Kent County Council* 
Statutory Partners: 
District Councils (to be named), East Kent and 
Coastal Primary Care Trust, West Kent Primary 
Care Trust, Kent Probation 
Non Statutory Partners: 
Supporting People and Kent Commissioning 
Body, Kent Housing Group, 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

3



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

 
DCSF STATUTORY INDICATORS All following Indicators under discussion with DCSF as part of the annual target setting process 

NI 92 Narrowing the gap 
between the lowest 
achieving 20% in the 
Early Years Foundation 
Stage Profile and the rest 

    Lead: 
 
Statutory Partners: 
 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 

NI 72 Achievement of at 
least 78 points across the 
Early Years Foundation 
Stage with at least 6 in 
each of the scales in 
Personal Social and 
emotional Development 
and Communication, 
Language and Literacy 

    Lead: 
 
Statutory Partners: 
 
Non Statutory Partners: 

NI 73 Achievement at 
level 4 or above in both 
English and Maths a Key 
Stage 2 
 

    Lead: 
 
Statutory Partners: 
 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 
 

NI 93 Progression by 2     Lead: 

P
a
g
e
 3

4



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

levels in English between 
Key Stage 1 and Key 
Stage 2 

 
Statutory Partners: 
 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 
 
 

NI 94 Progression by 2 
levels in Maths between 
Key Stage 1 and Key 
Stage 2 

    Lead: 
 
Statutory Partners: 
 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 

NI 74 Achievement at 
level 5 or above in both 
English and Maths at Key 
Stage 3 
 

    Lead: 
 
Statutory Partners: 
 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 

NI 83 achievement at 
level 5 or above in 
Science at Key Stage 3 

    Lead: 
 
Statutory Partners: 
 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

5



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

NI 95 Progression by 2 
levels in English between 
Key Stage 2 and Key 
Stage 3 

    Lead: 
 
Statutory Partners: 
 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 

NI 96 Progression by 2 
levels in Maths between 
Key Stage 2 and Key 
Stage 3 

    Lead: 
 
Statutory Partners: 
 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 

NI 75 Achievement of 5 or 
more A*-C grades at 
GCSE or equivalent 
including English and 
Maths 
 

     
Lead: 
 
Statutory Partners: 
 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 

NI 97 Progression by 2 
levels in English between 
Key Stage 3 and Key 
Stage 4 

    Lead: 
 
Statutory Partners: 
 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

6



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

NI 98 Progression by 2 
levels in Maths between 
Key Stage 3 and Key 
Stage 4 

    Lead: 
 
Statutory Partners: 
 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 

NI 87 Secondary school 
persistent absence rate  

    Lead: 
 
Statutory Partners: 
 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 

NI 99 Looked after 
children reaching level 4 
in English at Key Stage 2 

    Lead: 
 
Statutory Partners: 
 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 

NI 100 Children in care 
reaching level 4 in Maths 
at Key Stage 2 

    Lead: 
 
Statutory Partners: 
 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 

NI 101 Children in care     Lead: 

P
a
g
e
 3

7



SUBMISSION TEMPLATE KENT AGREEMENT 2.         Rolling changes as at 01 May 2008      Work in Progress         

 
Indicator(s), including those 
from national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a*), and including 
education and early years targets 

Partners who have signed-up to the target and 
any which are acting as lead partner/s (shown 

with a*) 

   
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 

  

achieving 5 A*-C GCSEs 
(or equivalent) at Key 
Stage 4 (including English 
and mathematics) 

 
Statutory Partners: 
 
Non Statutory Partners: 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

8



   

By:   Leader of the Council 

To:   County Council – 15 May 2008 

Subject:  QUARTERLY REPORT ON URGENT KEY DECISIONS 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Summary: To report that three urgent Key Decisions were taken in the last 
quarter. 

 

 
1. The Constitution requires me to provide a quarterly report to the Council of 
any Key Decisions which were taken as urgent matters during the previous three 
months. 
 
2. Three urgent Key Decisions have been taken in the last quarter as set out 
below. 
 
(a) Civil Parking Enforcement 

This decision was taken by Mr Keith Ferrin, Cabinet Member for Environment, 
Highways and Waste.  The reason for the urgency was because it had, at the time 
the decision was taken, only recently become apparent that the enabling legislation 
for Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE) published in January 2008 had been poorly 
worded where it related to enforcement in two-tier authority areas.  This meant that 
decisions taken by District Councils acting as agents to County Councils over the 
introduction of CPE may have been open to challenge and penalty charge notices 
(PCN) issued from 31 March 2008 when the new regulations came into force may 
also have been challenged.  To seek to overcome these issues urgent approval was 
sought to confirm that the Parking Enforcement Agency arrangements, as originally 
agreed with the Kent District Councils, still applied in full in the context of CPE. 
 
(b) Education on the Isle of Sheppey – Outcome of Further Consultation on 
Proposed Changes to Schools 

This decision was taken by Mr Mark Dance, Cabinet Member for Operations, 
Resources and Skills (CFE), who agreed: 

 
(i) the issuing of linked public notices to establish the primary and 

secondary phases of education on the Isle of Sheppey –  

• Change of age range for the first schools and St George’s CE 
Middle School 

• The addition of provision for Eastchurch CE Primary School to 
be located at Warden Bay 

• The closure of Minster College, Cheyne Middle School and 
Danley Middle School to be replaced by an Academy on the 

Agenda Item 9

Page 39



   

Minster College and Cheyne Middle School sites, subject to the 
funding agreement; and 

 
(ii) subject to approval of the proposals, following the end of the 

representation period, the resources necessary to implement the 
scheme being provided. 

 
(iii) the reason for this matter being taken under the urgency procedures 

was to ensure that, following final consideration and support for these 
proposals by the School Organisation Advisory Board, the timetable for 
implementation of the primary phase could be commenced from 
September 2008 and implementation of the secondary phase could be 
implement from September 2009. 
 

(c) Kent County Council Business Plans 2008/09 

The reason this decision had to be taken was because although the Business Plans 
were formally approved at the meeting of Cabinet on 14 April 2008 they should have 
been subject to an entry in the Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions.  However, 
due to an oversight, such an entry was not made at the appropriate time and 
therefore these steps were taken in order to regularise that situation. 
 
4. In accordance with the Constitution the Chairman and Spokesmen of the 
Cabinet Scrutiny Committee agreed to the taking of these decisions as a matter of 
urgency. 
 
5. The County Council is requested to note this report. 
 
 
P B Carter 
Leader of the Council  
 
 
 
 
Enquiries:  Peter Sass 
 Head of Democratic Services and Local Leadership 
 Ext: 4002 
 
Background documents: Records of Decisions 08/01151; 08/01142; 08/01170 
 

Page 40



By:    Mr M Hill OBE, Cabinet Member for Community Services 
 
To:    County Council 15 May 2008 
 
Subject:   Mosquito Devices 
 
Classification:  Unrestricted 
 

 
Summary:  The attached report is presented for information and a 

decision about Kent County Council’s policy on their use.  
 
FOR DECISION 

 
Background 
 
1. The mosquito device uses high-frequency sound to stop teenagers 
congregating outside shops, schools and railway stations. The £500 Mosquito 
device has been installed at some 3,500 locations across the country since it 
first went on sale in January 2006. It emits an irritating, high-pitched sound 
that can only be heard by children and young people up into their early 
twenties, forcing them to move on.   
 
Current Debate on the Mosquito Device 
 
2. This is an extremely controversial subject and is causing much debate in 
the news.   
 
3. The Children's Commissioner for England, Sir Albert Aynsley-Green, who 
was appointed to represent the views of the country’s 11 million children, has 
set up a campaign called ‘Buzz Off’ that is calling for the Mosquito to be 
banned on grounds that it infringes the rights of young people. He said: 
“These devices are indiscriminate and target all children and young people, 
including babies, regardless of whether they are behaving or misbehaving, 
this device is a quick fix. It's not tackling the root of the problem."  Liberty, 
Groundwork and the National Youth Agency are backing the campaign.  
 
4. ACPO Crime Prevention Initiatives has declined to award ‘Secured by 
Design’ accreditation to new security product, ‘Mosquito’. Lack of evidence 
that the product is safe, potential side-effects on people suffering disabilities 
and issues surrounding discrimination led to the decision. Individual Police 
forces and their governing Chief Constables will not be affected by the 
decision not to award Mosquito official police accreditation and may still use 
the product if they believe it to be appropriate. 
 
5. The Government has no plans to ban the ‘Mosquito’ sonic devices. In a 
statement issued after the calls for a ban, it stated: "Mosquito alarms are not 
banned and the Government has no plans to do so. Obviously no one would 
want to have to use a device like this, and it should very much be seen as a 
last resort. We will continue to tackle the underlying problems through better 

Agenda Item 11

Page 41



neighbourhood policing, giving young people alternative things to do in their 
spare time and, where necessary, using the powers we have put in place to 
prevent anti-social behaviour."  
 
 
Human Rights 
 
6. In general, the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA) only applies where rights are 
being breached by a public body rather than by a private individual, so 
shopkeepers using the device should not be directly subject to its 
requirements.  From the County Council’s perspective banning the use of the 
device on it’s premises would not appear to be breach any aspect of the HRA.    
 
 
Kent 
 
7. Kent Police will not deploy any Mosquito devices due to the lack of 
evidence/studies in Health and Safety and the discriminative issues around 
these. However, they cannot prevent use by commercial bodies but do 
take available opportunities to make their position known.   
 
8. The majority of local authorities such as Maidstone, Tonbridge and Malling, 
Gravesham, Dartford Borough Councils and Canterbury CDRP have made 
the decision not to use the devices in conjunction with Kent Police due to 
Health and Safety/Discriminative issues attached to these.  Dover District 
Council/CDRP, Sevenoaks CDRP and Tunbridge Wells Borough Council do 
not have any plans to use these at present.  Swale Borough Council do not 
use these but would consider it depending on the individual circumstances 
and would seek legal advice prior to any decisions being made.   

 
9. However, Shepway CDRP purchased 2 Mosquito devices, which they have 
used and found it effective for moving on groups of youths, and there have 
been no complaints at present. They will only deploy these until the problem 
dissipates and have advised that the youths have not returned to the areas 
where these were used.   

 
10. It would seem that Businesses and residents can still purchase and use 
the Mosquito devices regardless of whether the local authority are in 
agreement as it does not contravene human rights so there are possibly 
others in the Kent area.   
 
Other Information 
 
11. The ‘Buzz Off’ campaign are asking young people and supporters of the 
campaign to advise of the locations of Mosquito devices so that they can draw 
up a map of these but this is in the early stages so will not be completed for a 
while.  
 
12. There are other ways of dispersing young people, an example is a 
Yorkshire Bus Station who started playing Classical music over loud speakers 

Page 42



following complaints of anti social behaviour which virtually stopped overnight 
as it is ‘uncool to be hanging around somewhere that is playing classical 
music’. 
 
13. There are a number of Local Authorities/Community Safety Partnerships 
over the country who are against these devices. Lancashire County Council 
has already banned the use of the device from council property, including 
schools, because they contradicted the authority's duty to represent young 
people and listen to their concerns. Speaking at the time of the decision, 
council leader Hazel Harding said: "We are against the use of mosquitoes as 
they assume all teenagers in the vicinity are behaving anti-socially. ”For us to 
support their use would send out completely the wrong message about the 
county council's attitude towards young people."  Lancashire police continue 
to use the equipment. 
 
 
Recommendations 
 
The County Council is asked to note the issues concerning the use of 
Mosquito Devices and: 
 

a) Agree to ban their use on Kent County Council property; 
 
b) Agree to advise potential users of the dangers presented to children 

and young people by these devices; and 
 

c) Lobby central government to enforce a national ban on use of the 
devices.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
______________________________ 

 

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Planning Applications Committee held at Sessions House, 
County Hall, Maidstone on Tuesday, 15 April 2008. 
 
PRESENT:  Mr R E King (Chairman), Mr A R Bassam (Vice-Chairman),  Mrs A D Allen 
(substitute for Mrs V J Dagger), Mr T J Birkett (substitute for Mr T A Maddison), Mr D S 
Daley (substitute for Mr S J G Koowaree), Mr J A Davies, Mr T Gates, Mrs E Green, Mr C 
Hibberd, Mr P M Hill, OBE (substitute for Mr R A Marsh), Mr P W A Lake (substitute for 
Mrs S V Hohler), Mr J F London, Mr J I Muckle, Mr W V Newman, Mr M J Northey 
(substitute for Mr J B O Fullarton), Mr A R Poole and Mr F Wood-Brignall. 
 
OFFICERS: The Head of Planning Applications Group, Mrs S Thompson (with Mr J 
Crossley and Mr J Wooldridge); the Development Manager, Mr R White; and the 
Democratic Services Officer, Mr A Tait. 
 

 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 

 

27. Minutes 
 

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 18 March 2008 are correctly 
recorded and that they be signed by the Chairman. 

 

28. Application MA/08/45 – Importation of inert material over a three year period 

for site remediation works and associated office and wheel cleaning facilities 

at Lenham Quarry, Lenham Forstal Road, Lenham; Brett Aggregates 
(Item C1 – Report by Head of Planning Applications Group) 

RESOLVED that permission be granted to the application subject to conditions 
including conditions covering operations being completed within 3 years; HGV 
movements being limited to a maximum of 106 per day (53 in / 53 out) for all 
operations at the site; the volume of fill material imported to the site not exceeding 
that necessary to achieve the proposed remediation scheme; a detailed design 
document for the construction of the slope including a monitoring regime; fill 
materials according with those proposed; final site contours according with the 
permitted restoration scheme; each source of fill material passing acceptance 
criteria detailed in the applicant’s geotechnical report to determine mechanical 
acceptability; submission of compaction methodology for imported fills; submission 
of details of the proposed fuel storage tank; wheel-wash facilities being provided 
prior to commencement of operations on site; hours of operation; noise limits; dust 
suppression measures; the removal of the office building and wheel-wash on 
completion of operations; and the development being carried out in accordance 
with the submitted plans and any others approved pursuant to the above 
conditions. 

 

 

Agenda Item 13

Page 45



 

 

29. Proposal CA/07/1414 – Timber building to be used as a music room at St 

Mary’s Catholic Primary School, Northwood Road, Whitstable; Governors of 

St Mary’s Catholic Primary School and KCC Children, Families and 

Education. 
(Item D1- Report by Head of Planning Applications Group)  

 

(1) The Head of Planning Application Group tabled a summary of further 
representations. 

 

(2) Mr C Wakeman, a local resident addressed the Committee in opposition to the 
proposal.  Mrs E Leaman, Head Teacher of St Mary’s Catholic Primary School spoke in 
reply. 

 

(3) The Committee agreed to strengthen the final condition in the Head of Planning 
Application Group’s recommendations, as set out in (4) below. 

 

(4) RESOLVED that permission be granted to the proposal subject to conditions 
including the standard time condition; and conditions covering the development being 
carried out in accordance with the permitted plans; the use of the development hereby 
permitted being limited to between the hours of 08:30 and 16:15 Monday to Friday term 
time only, with no use on Saturdays, Sundays or Bank Holidays; a scheme of 
landscaping, its implementation and maintenance; external roof materials being submitted 
for approval; details of all access arrangements to comply with DDA legislation being 
submitted for approval prior to commencement of operations on site; and the use of the 
buildings being specifically restricted to low noise level singing and scholastic instruments, 
with no use of amplification being permitted. 

 

30. Proposal MA/08/289 – Polymeric surfaced multi-use games area with fencing 

and planting at Eastborough Primary School, Vinters Road, Maidstone; 

Governors of Eastborough Primary School and KCC Children, Families and 

Education. 
(Item D2 – Report by Head of Planning Applications Group) 

(1)   The Head of Planning Applications Group reported the views of Mr I S Chittenden, 
the local Member. 

 

(2) In agreeing the Head of Planning Applications Group’s recommendations, the 
Committee included permission for use on Saturdays from 9.00 am to 1.00 pm, no use on 
Bank Holidays and a restriction on use to children under 12 years of age. 

 

(3) RESOLVED that permission be granted to the proposal subject to conditions 
including conditions covering the standard time limit; no external lighting being installed; 
details of the landscaping scheme, including colour of fencing; hours of use for the multi-
use games area being restricted to 8.00 – 18.00 Monday to Friday and 9.00 – 13.00 on 
Saturdays with no use on Sundays or Bank Holidays; use of the facility being restricted to 
children under 12 years of age; and the development being carried out in accordance with 
the permitted details. 

Page 46



 

 

31. County Matters dealt with under Delegated Powers 
(Items E1-E6 – Reports by Head of Planning Applications Group) 

 
RESOLVED to note reports on items dealt with under delegated powers since the 
last meeting relating to:- 

(a) County matter applications;  

(b) consultations on applications submitted by District Councils or Government 
Departments (None);  

(c) County Council developments; 

(d) detailed submissions under Channel Tunnel Rail Link Act 1996 (None);  

(e) screening opinions under Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations 
1999; and  

(f) scoping opinions under Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations 
1999 (None).  

 
 
 
 
 
 
08/aa/pa/041508/Minutes 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 3 April 2008 and if in order, to be approved as a correct record.
	8 Kent's Second Local Area Agreement
	9 Quarterly Report on Urgent Key Decisions
	11 Mosquito Devices
	13 Minutes for Information

